UNITED
NATIONS CAT

Distr.
GENERAL

Convention against Torture
and Other Cruel, Inhuman

. CAT/ C/ SR. 352
or Degrading Treatment 17 November 1998
or Punishment

Original: ENGLISH

COWM TTEE AGAI NST TORTURE
Twenty-first session
SUMVARY RECORD COF THE FI RST PART (PUBLIC)* OF THE 352nd MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 13 Novenber 1998, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M. BURNS
CONTENTS

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (cont i nued)

Second periodic report of Croatia

*  The summary record of the second part (closed) of the neeting appears
as docunent CAT/ C/ SR. 352/ Add. 1) .

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunentto
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Commttee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 98-19581 (E)



CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 10 a.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES UNDER ARTI CLE 19 OF THE
CONVENTI ON (agenda item 4) (continued)

Second periodic report of Croatia (CAT/C/ 33/Add. 4)

1. At the invitation of the Chairman, M. didovec, M. Nad, M. Krapac
M. VeiE and Ms. DragiE (Croatia) took places at the Conmittee table

2. The CHAIRMAN invited the del egation of Croatia to introduce the second
periodic report of Croatia (CAT/C 33/ Add. 4).

3. M. 061 DOVEC said that, since independence, the Republic of Croatia had
beconme a party to a large nunmber of human rights instrunents and had ratified
the two Optional Protocols to the International Covenant on Civil and
Political Rights. Indeed, significant inprovenents had occurred since the
consi deration of the initial report, the nost inmportant being the peacefu
reintegration of Eastern Slavonia into Croatia's constitutional and |ega
system Also of great significance was the forthcom ng signing of the
Agreenent on Special Relations between the Republic of Croatia and the
Republic of Bosnia and Herzegovi na and of the agreenent pertaining to the use
of the port of Plode and the passage through Neum by those two countries.

4, Croatia, which strongly supported the international protection of human
rights through the enploynent of objective criteria, was opposed to the use of
i nternational human rights nechanisns to gain political |everage. Any human
rights violations that had occurred between the onset of the aggression

agai nst Croatia and the attainnent of liberty and territorial sovereignty must
be seen as a consequence of the aggression - a war marked by, anong ot her

t hi ngs, executions, ethnic cl eansing, genocide and ethnocide - and not as a

wi despread phenonenon. The consequences of war were painful in both the
materi al and the psychol ogi cal sense: confidence-building would take tinme and
patience.

5. Croatia was going through a two-fold transition process. |In June 1998,
the National Plan for the Return and Acconmopdati on of Di splaced Persons and
Ref ugees had been adopted, and 45,000 Croatian Serbs had since returned from
Eastern Slavoni a, Bosnia and Herzegovina and the Federal Republic of

Yugosl avia. Croatia had al so passed nunerous | aws regulating the return of
refugees and di spl aced persons and providing | egal security for returnees. As
a guarantor of the Dayton Agreenent, Croatia fully recognized the
indivisibility and territorial integrity of Bosnia and Herzegovi na, and
supported all peacekeeping efforts undertaken by the United Nations in that
country.

6. The CGovernment had al so established bilateral relations with the Federa

Republic of Yugoslavia and was prepared to denilitarize and open the Croatian

side of the border with Mintenegro, currently under the adm nistration of the

United Nations M ssion of Observers in Prevlaka (UNMOP), whose mandate was due
to end in January 1999. The United Nations Civilian Police (UNCIVPOL) mandate
in the Danubi an regi on had al so ended, after the successful conpletion of

UNCI VPOL's task. Croatia was aware that statehood was not the only condition



CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 3

for denocracy, and that political and econonmic freedons nust also be created.
As a free country, Croatia wi shed to enjoy and naintain the benefits of
freedomregul ated by law. Denocracy and human rights were essential for
peace, order and devel opnent and human rights policy should in fact be a
conponent of any policy of security. It was essential to guarantee and
protect human rights throughout the region, a policy which nust include the
arrest and puni shnent of war crimnals.

7. Croatia, which had firmy supported the establishment of the
International Crimnal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia, was dissatisfied
with the results of the Tribunal's work. Only five persons had been indicted
for war crines against the Republic of Croatia. The npst notorious crimnals,
Kar adfii E, MartiE, MadiE SljivanOanin, MkSiE and RadiE, were still at |arge
Furthernore, only three of the nine Croats who had voluntarily surrendered to
the Tribunal had been indicted, despite prom ses of a speedy conclusion of
that phase of the proceedings.

8. Croatia was a party to the Convention on the Prohibition, Use,

St ockpi ling, Production and Transfer of Anti-Personnel Mnes and on their
Destruction (the Ottawa Convention), strongly supported the second protocol of
t he Convention on Prohibitions or Restrictions on the use of Certain

Conventi onal Weapons Which May Be Deened to Be Excessively Injurious or to
Have Indiscrimnate Effects (CCW and was participating in the fornul ation of
the draft international convention on the suppression of terrorism A matter
of great concern were the 2 mllion anti-personnel mnes that had been laid

t hroughout Croatia, which were delaying the return of displaced persons and

hi nderi ng econom ¢ devel opnent.

9. The Covernnment had recently ratified the European Convention for the
Prevention of Torture and |Inhuman or Degradi ng Treatment or Punishnent and the
Eur opean Convention for the Protection of Human Ri ghts and Fundanenta
Freedons, and had accepted the jurisdiction of the European Court of Human
Rights with regard to individual cases. |In addition, Croatia was assisting in
the drafting of an additional protocol to the Convention against Torture. It
commended, noreover, the results of the conference held at Rome with a view to
establishing an international crimnal court which would ensure protection for
human rights and the rule of Iaw on a permanent basis. Croatia was proud to
assi st in the dissem nation of denocratic freedons both by setting an exanple
and by offering assistance to others.

10. Since the submi ssion of its initial report, it had enacted a new

Crim nal Code which incorporated the definition of torture as set out in
article 1 of the Convention, and which carried a penalty of one to eight years
in prison. A new course entitled “Human Ri ghts and Police Ethics” had been

i ntroduced into the curricula of the Police Academy. On the Conmittee's
recomrendation, all United Nations and Council of Europe docunents that had a
bearing on the police force - anmbng them the Convention agai nst Torture - had
been published and distributed to police departments and bodi es.

11. Croatia had not, however, established an independent non-government al
comrittee to investigate allegations that acts of torture had been comm tted
during Operation Storm In the Governnment's view, the judiciary and the
police had been inplenmenting the appropriate | egal neasures. Croatia also



CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 4

benefited fromthe continuing presence of bodies which were assisting in the
work of the International Crimnal Tribunal for the Former Yugoslavia.

Al t hough those el enents should anply ensure that no crine was | eft unpuni shed,
the Governnent was nonetheless willing to continue to discuss that matter with
the Comm ttee.

12. Lastly, the Croation Governnent sought the Committee's assistance and
expertise in devel oping an even nore acceptabl e approach to the pronotion of
human rights, and would do its utnost fully to cooperate in the Conmttee's
endeavours.

13. M. SILVA HENRI QUES GASPAR (Country Rapporteur) said that, although it
had arrived a year and a half after the schedul ed date of subni ssion, the
report denonstrated the Government's willingness to cooperate with the
Committee. First and forenost, he wished to comend Croatia for having
ratified the European Convention for the Protection of Human Ri ghts and
Fundament al Freedoms, for accepting the jurisdiction of the European Court of
Human Rights with regard to individual cases, and for ratifying the European
Convention for the Prevention of Torture and I nhuman or Degradi ng Treatnment or
Puni shnment. Anot her praiseworthy devel opnment was the incorporation of the
crime of torture in the Croatian Crimnal Code.

14. The report neverthel ess prompted a nunber of questions and concerns.
Paragraph 5 indicated that an ammesty had been decreed. States adnmittedly
possessed the right to resolve their own donestic affairs and to decide howto
handl e crimnal matters in the aftermath of conflicts. The need for peace
of ten demanded that sone crinmes should be pardoned. And yet, the Convention
agai nst Torture inposed on States parties the obligation to be cautious in
designating crinmes that mght benefit froman amesty. Indeed, crines that
fell under the definition of torture should never be subject to an ammesty.
The report stipulated that the npost aggravated crinmes of human rights were
excluded fromthe amesty. To what specific crinmes did the amesty apply?
VWhat crinmes were excluded?

15. According to paragraph 15, the new Crinminal Act expressly incorporated
the crine of torture. Had that new | aw been applied? How did it differ from
previous |egislation applicable to the crime of torture? Again, according to
paragraph 18, the public attorney was obliged to discover the truth and to
ensure respect for the law. Additional information would be wel come on the
role of the public attorney and, in particular, whether he was a judge,

whet her he enjoyed autonomy and i ndependence, and to what extent he was

behol den to the Executive, and in particular to the Mnistry of Justice.

16. Par agraphs 25 and 42 indicated that, with regard to police practice, new
speci al nmechani snms for protecting fundamental human rights had been

formul ated. A description of those nechani snms and procedures woul d be

wel cone. It would be useful to know, nore particularly, what bodies were
responsi bl e for overseeing the conduct of the police. Paragraph 37 stated
that the Mnistry of the Interior was obliged to nonitor police conduct on a
daily basis. Was there a unit responsible for control and inspection and, if
so, could it act independently and undertake investigations? Paragraph 46
stated that the authority to determ ne issues of detention had now been pl aced



CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 5

under the jurisdiction of the courts. To what extent did the judge have the
authority to determ ne whether a person would be held in preventive detention
and to nonitor the legality of that detention?

17. Par agraph 128 of the report said that a victimof abuse could file a
conplaint with a public attorney within three days. Ws that three-day period
obligatory? Could the victiml|odge a conplaint after the three days had

el apsed? What was the rationale for setting such a period?

18. As to the matter of disciplinary proceedi ngs agai nst police officials,
there was a significant discrepancy between the information provided in
paragraph 41 and that which appeared in paragraphs 39, 40, 51, 52, 57 and 58:
very few such proceedi ngs had been instituted in conparison to the nunber of
of fences that had occurred. Was he interpreting those figures correctly?

19. After considering the initial report the Commttee had urged the
Croatian Governnment to investigate all allegations of torture or of cruel,
degradi ng or inhuman treatnment and to report its findings. |In that regard
the State party should provide further information on the matter discussed in
paragraphs 30 to 32. How many of the proceedings instituted involved such
serious offences as torture and cruel, degrading or inhuman treatnent?

20. Lastly, some new reports of torture or ill-treatnent by Croatian police
of ficers had been brought to the attention of the public. Could the

del egation provide information concerning investigations undertaken into the
cases of SaSa Kal enmber and Riccardo Cetina?

21. M. ZUPANNIN (Alternate Country Rapporteur) began by congratul ating
Croatia on incorporating verbatimin its crimnal |aw the definition of
torture set out in article 1 of the Convention. Another positive devel opnent
had been the shortening of incommuni cado detention by the police to 24 hours.

22. By and large, the report seenmed to be witten purely fromthe point of
view of the Mnistry of the Interior. |Information appeared to be |acking on
the police and on the reformof crimnal |aw and crimnal procedure. He
therefore recommended that, in the future, experts fromdifferent fields
shoul d be brought together to wite the report.

23. He wi shed to refer to a nunber of allegations contained in the report on
Croatia by Amesty International. Firstly, with regard to the case of

Sefik MijkiE, it had been nmintained that the defendant had recei ved numerous
injuries as a result of having been struck by an obl ong object while
hand-cuffed in a seated position. One allegation had been that he had died of
trauma arising fromthe injuries, the other that his death had been a direct
result of the injuries. The matter had gone to the Supreme Court, and the
Comrittee would like to know what stage the case had reached.

24, The Committee was also interested to |l earn nmore about the case of

Mario Bari$iE, a young man reported to have been severely beaten by Zagreb
police in May 1998 and, as a result, hospitalized. Although the Mnistry of
the Interior had adm tted w ongdoing and di sm ssed three police officers, no
crim nal charges were known to have been brought against them In conpliance



CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 6

with article 12 of the Convention, it was the duty of the Croatian authorities
to file charges, presumably under article 176 of the Penal Code, defining
torture.

25. Non- gover nnent al organi zati ons (NGOs) had submitted a nunber of critical
comrents concerning the alleged mani pul ati on of statistics on abuses by the
arnmy and the police. The international comunity's field m ssions operating
in Croatia since 1992 had col |l ected an enornous anmount of material which

could be used as evidence in crimnal trials, including those relating to
torture. The material had been collected by the European Conmunity Mnitoring
Commi ssion, the United Nations Protection Force, the United Nations

H gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights, the United Nations Confidence Restoration
Operation in Croatia, the United Nations Transitional Adm nistration for
Eastern Slavoni a, Baranja and Western Sirm um and the Organi zation for
Security and Cooperation in Europe (OSCE) Mssion in Croatia. Could the

del egati on comment on the NGO criticismof the failure to use that material to
i nvestigate all eged perpetrators of abuse and torture? O herw se, the

Commi ttee woul d have to conclude that the Government was not willing to
prosecute vigorously all suspected cases of torture.

26. According to Amesty International, reports by internationa

organi zations as well as the circunstances of the few cases that had cone to
court indicated serious shortcomngs in the investigation carried out.

Evi dence had not been preserved and crinme scenes had not been protected or
wel | docunented. Also, it was not clear whether autopsies had been conducted
on persons when there had been a reasonabl e suspicion of death from unnatura
causes. In prosecutions that had taken place, the Croatian authorities had
di ssoci ated thensel ves from any official connection with the violations, to
such an extent that it seened sone soldiers had been retroactively denpbilized
fromthe army. |In that context, it was especially disturbing that the

Presi dent of the Supreme Court of Croatia, MIlan VukoviE, had nade a statenent
to the effect that Croatians by definition could not commit war crines, since
they had been defending the homeland. Had such a statement actually been
made?

27. Agai n, after repeated visits by soldiers in uniform a man naned

Bogdan BrkiE, had allegedly been tied to a tree in Septenber 1996 and the tree
had been set on fire. A human rights activist who had visited hima week

| ater reported that he could not wal k because of |leg burns. Shortly
thereafter, soldiers had turned up again, ransacked his honme, kicked himinto
a nearby stream and broken two of his ribs. Had the case been investigated,
and were the alleged perpetrators, being properly prosecuted? |If so, what was
the current stage in the proceedings?

28. Amesty International also reported that, in August 1998, when it had
presented the authorities with its criticisnms and recomrendati ons, their

i mredi ate response had been to recycle statistics on abuse which the

organi zati on had previously exposed as neani ngl ess. \When the authorities had
queri ed whet her information existed about hundreds of killings, Ammesty

I nternational had sent details of the reported acts to the Mnistry of Justice
and the relevant prosecutors. Gven that in some cases docunentation

i ncluding police and forensic reports, seenmed to have been "m spl aced", the



CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 7

organi zation had al so called on the Croatian Governnment to investigate whether
any attenpt had been made to cover up the crimes conmtted during and after
Operations Flash and Storm Ammesty International was disappointed that, as
of October 1998, it had heard nothing nore fromthe Croatian authorities about
measures they intended to take to ensure an i ndependent, inpartial and

t horough investigation of all the allegations and prosecution of those
responsi bl e or about any reparation granted to victinms or their relatives.

29. The reports the Committee had received from NGOs suggested a de facto
i mpunity of certain categories of individuals suspected of committing torture
It was to be hoped that the delegation could respond to all those allegations.

30. In addition, could details be provided on the cases of

the 53 individuals charged with nurder and 50 others charged with other acts
possibly related to torture or ill-treatnent which the Croatian authorities
had reported to the Security Council in June 1996? What were the names of the
i ndividuals in first instance proceedings, as well as the case nunber, the
court, the date the proceedi ngs had begun, the incidents being investigated
and the charges being pursued? Wat were the nanes of the individuals in
cases on which final decisions had been taken?

31. A nunber of specific | egal questions also came to nmind. Wth regard to
paragraph 94 of the second periodic report, which spelt out the legally
permtted periods of pre-trial detention, he noted that many countries often
failed to provide information on the pre-trial, post-indictnment period of
detention. \Wereas the pre-trial, pre-indictment period of detention could be
a maxi mum of six nmonths, it was often the case that the pre-trial,

post-indi ctnment period of detention pending judgnent and sentencing could be
as long as two years. It seemed to suggest that a total of two and a half
years' pre-trial detention was conceivable. Could the delegation confirm

whet her that was the case?

32. Par agraph 118 cont ai ned what appeared to be the sole reference to the
Constitutional Court. Had there been any cases before the Constitutiona
Court dealing with police brutality or abuse, as well as conpensation, etc.?
Par agraph 130 spoke of the right to conpensation, but what type of
conpensation was involved? For exanple, if a person was found innocent after
six nmonths' pre-trial detention, how nuch conpensation was pai d?

33. Paragraph 135 said the Law on Crim nal Procedure prescribed that records
of hearings in which evidence had been obtained by coercion were to be
excluded fromthe case before the hearing comrenced. Did that concern the

i nvestigating judge or the trial court? Did the investigating judge see the
evi dence inproperly obtained by the police? If so, what was done to nmeke sure
that, in that judge's own investigation, he did not nmake use of such evidence?
Coul d the del egation assure the Conmmttee that such material was discarded
before the case reached the investigating judge?

34, M. EL MASRY said that, like M. ZuparQi 0, he was pleased to note that
the Crim nal Code now nade torture a crimnal offence. But there was still an




CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 8

al arm ng gap between the law and its application. There were many reports of
acts of violence against detainees who had not been charged with crimna

of fences, but had been administratively punished. The Committee could provide
materi al on many such all eged cases. He asked the del egation to coment.

35. The prosecutor in the International Criminal Tribunal for the Fornmer
Yugosl avia had said that she would not pursue prosecution in every case and
that she expected national authorities to prosecute as well. What had

Croatia's donestic authorities done to prosecute such cases? Notw thstanding
abundant material from governmental and non-governmental observers, national
prosecutors in Croatia were reported to have told Amesty International that
they possessed no information frominternational organizations in their files.
VWhat had the Croatian authorities done to ensure that the evidence coll ected
by international observers was made avail able to prosecutors so that crim nal
proceedi ngs coul d be brought against the alleged perpetrators of torture and
ill-treatnment?

36. M. SZRENSEN referring first to article 10 of the Convention, asked the
del egation to provide information on what training prison staff received in
connection with the issue of torture. Article 10 also called for the training
of medi cal personnel so that they could diagnose torture. Could the

del egation supply information on those two groups? Such training was al so of
rel evance to article 11, which required systematic reviews of places of
detention. There again, doctors had a crucial role to play. Could the

del egation informthe Committee whether prison doctors received specia
training in that regard?

37. One excellent safeguard against ill-treatment was the obligatory

exam nati on of detainees upon arrival in prison, because it was a good way to
ascertain whether they had been tortured beforehand, nanmely in the police
station. It was obviously to the advantage of the prison authorities to
establish that a person had been the victimof torture and ill-treatnment prior
to commttal, and not while he was in prison.

38. He drew attention to the United Nations Voluntary Fund for Victins of
Torture, which stood in need of resources, and which also was of synbolic
value. Victins of torture wanted to see whether their country contributed to
the Fund, thereby showi ng themrespect, the first step towards rehabilitation.
Al t hough Croatia was experiencing financial difficulties, a token donation
woul d be wel cone.

39. Lastly, he pointed out that, under the ternms of article 14, victinms were
to receive as full rehabilitation as possible, sonething that included nedical
rehabilitation. A nunmber of foreign-run centres in Croatia were involved in
that task and he urged Croatia to support them

40. M. GONZALEZ POBLETE said article 12 of the Convention established an
obligation for States parties to investigate ex officio, i.e. wthout the

vi cti m having | odged an accusation or a conpl aint, whenever there were good
grounds to believe that torture had been committed. The second periodic
report, however, which basically referred back to the initial report, conveyed




CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 9

the inpression that those investigations were not carried out unless the
injured party | odged an accusation or a conplaint. Could nore clarification
be given on the |l egal provisions |aying down the obligation to initiate

i nvestigations of that kind and what the actual practice was?

41. He endorsed M. Sgrensen's remarks concerning article 14 and drew
attention to the fact that both reports referred exclusively to the right of
redress of a person who had been acquitted after having been unjustly accused
or inprisoned. Neither of those situations was covered by article 14, which
i nstead concerned the right of victims of torture to obtain redress and
compensation for harmsuffered. There nust be sone regulation in the Croatian
Crim nal Code on the right of any victim not just of torture, to claim
redress or conpensation. 1In general, legislation specified that such clains
were to be directed against the person responsible for the act. 1In the case
of the right to conpensation for torture inflicted by State officials,
however, responsibility rested with the State.

42. M. YAKOVLEV said he was inpressed with the Croatian report and asked
the delegation to conment on allegations of discrimnatory enforcenent of the
Crim nal Code in cases of persons accused of torture. The judicial
authorities allegedly took nore stringent action agai nst accused persons who
had been opponents during the recent hostilities.

43. The CHAIRMAN said he assiciated hinmself in particular with the points
made by M. Silva Henriques Gaspar and M. Sgrensen on the question of
ammesty. A policy of whol esal e amesty was manifestly inconsistent with the
spirit of the Convention.

44, Inits oral introduction, the delegation had informed the Conmittee that
the new Cri m nal Code, which had come into effect in January 1998, had

i ntroduced the crimnal offence of torture, defined in accordance with the
terms of article 1 of the Convention. But paragraph 15 of the report stated
that, although torture and other forms thereof had not been defined as
explicit crimnal acts, they were prohibited pursuant to the provisions of the
Crim nal Code. How did the delegation reconcile those two statenents?

45. Again, he would like to know how judges were appoi nted and under what
ci rcunstances they could be renoved.

46. He asked whether fenmale offenders had separate remand facilities. How
many wonmen's prisons existed, where were they |ocated and what was the total
popul ation of female prisoners? Wre the guards in wonen's remand facilities
and prisons femal e and what arrangenents were made to give inprisoned nothers
access to their children?

47. Per haps the del egation would clarify the statenment in paragraph 130 of
the report that every person sentenced or found guilty had the right to
conpensation in cases of acquittal. According to the sane paragraph, not a

singl e request for conpensation regarding crimnal acts agai nst human and
civil freedons and rights had been recorded in 1996 and the first half



CAT/ C/ SR. 352
page 10

of 1997. Did certain obstacles have to be cleared before a person could apply
for compensation? It seened irrational that eligible persons would fail to
apply. Moreover, did Croatia have a system of legal aid and, if so, what form
did it take?

48. He invited the delegation of Croatia to respond to the Cormmittee's
guestions at the next neeting.

49. The del egation of Croatia w thdrew

The public part of the neeting rose at 11.20 a. m




